

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

Annual Report & Financial Statements

2001/02 Season

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT

The 32nd Annual General Meeting of the

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

will be held in the Clubrooms, Anderson Park Pavilion,

on Monday, 12 August, 2002

commencing at 7:30 PM

BUSINESS

1. Apologies

- 2. Minutes of the 31st Annual General Meeting, held on 27th August, 2001
- 3. Adoption of the Annual Report
- 4. Adoption of the Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet

5. Election of Officers:

- o Patron
- President
- Senior Vice President
- $\circ \quad \text{Life Members} \\$
- o Vice Presidents
- Club Officers:
 - Honorary Treasurer
 - Honorary Secretary
 - Club Captain
- o Management Committee:
 - 8 elected persons of whom at least 1 shall be a female
- Delegates to Cricket Wellington Annual General Meeting:
 - 5 required
- Honorary Auditor
- 6. Club Subscriptions for 2002/03 season
- 7. Notices of Motion
- 8. General Business

OFFICERS 2001/02 SEASON

Patron:

The Most Honourable Reverend Sir Paul Reeves GCMC, GCVO, QSO

Life Members:

D R Alexander, D R Davis, R A Forsyth, Miss B Fuller, Mrs A Garrett, K R MacDonald, L D Macer, T G McMahon, J S Perkins, R C Pope, E J Stewart, R Swan, I N Taylor, G L Whyte MBE

President:

G E Coppersmith

Immediate Past President:

B A Waddle

Past Presidents:

D R Davis, R A Forsyth, Mrs A Garrett, J A L Gibson QC, P P Henley, J G Revell, C J Taylor, I N Taylor

Senior Vice President:

G R Carruthers

Vice Presidents:

D B Alabaster, W A Arcus, R T Barber, K W Burke, G R Carruthers, D Deva, M E Garrett, D T Grainger, G Hopping, D L Hunt, R D Kinsella, A R MacGibbon, D Macer, A D McBeth, C C Monigatti, R Moses, B O'Brien, B Patel, G R Phillips, G M Russell, P W Steele, B R Taylor, G Thomas, J B Tucker, R H Vance, P R Wilson, A D Wilkinson, B E Windley, A C Yule

Honorary Treasurer: B S P Marra Honorary Secretary: E.Marriott/P.Palmer

Club Captain: D Macer

Management Committee:

D B Alabaster/B S P Marra (Chairman), D Deva, P Hawkes (Wellington College), P.Taylor (Junior Club), I McIsaac, E Marriott/P. Bedford, R.Setford, P.Palmer

> **Delegates to Cricket Wellington Inc:** G E Coppersmith, D Macer, P Taylor, D Alabaster, D Deva

> > Junior Club Liaison: P. Taylor

Selectors: D Murray, D Macer and R Setford

Bar Manager: D Deva Gear Custodians: E J Stewart/R Swan Results Steward: A C Yule

MINUTES OF 31th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD 27 AUGUST, 2001

Meeting commenced 7:30 PM. Chaired by Grant Coppersmith

- Apologies Dave Hunt, Emma Marriott, Chris Taylor.
- Minutes of the 30th Annual General Meeting tabled.
 Moved: Grant Coppersmith Secondaried.

Seconded: Derek Alabaster

- A moment of silence was observed for the passing of the following members: Mrs R. Waddle Alan Revell (Past President) Graeme Martin (Past President)
- Adoption of Annual Report.

Derek Alabaster (Chairman) made the following observations:

- Highlight of the season was undoubtedly the selection of James Franklin to the New Zealand side. Chris Monigatti is undertaking an exercise to hang photos of all NZ representatives on the Clubroom's walls.
- Player payments rife in Wellington. Collegians electing not to go down this path.
- The forced amalgamation of clubs by Cricket Wellington (the District cricket concept) was successfully defended by Collegians.
- The Senior team narrowly missed out on promotion back to the Pearce Cup.

Bryan Waddle was interested to know about the Club's commitment to future amalgamation opportunities. Derek responded that the Club remains open to that possibility. Karori approached us recently, but this was rejected due to the lateness of the approach. We also talked informally with University, although the interest on our part was not reciprocated.

Moved: Derek Alabaster Carried.

Seconded: Paddy Marra

Adoption of the Financial Statements and Balance Sheet.

Key points noted by Paddy Marra:

- 1. Hockey Association assets and liabilities written off (a net loss eventuated).
- 2. Junior Club suffered a reversal of fortunes last season (loss posted).
- 3. New carpet to be laid this season.
- 4. Not a great result on the Profit & Loss, but overall our cash position has improved (refer points 1 & 2, plus a surplus posted in the Sponsorship Fund).
- 5. \$2K sponsorship allocated to P&L and not Sponsorship Fund due to being classified as operating expenses (Cricket Wellington affiliation fees). This was noted in response to a question from Richard Boag.
- 6. Outstanding subs restricted to one team, plus a part sub from another team, and a small number of individual subscriptions. There was a good collection of 'old' subs from prior seasons. This was noted in response to a question from Russell Franklin.

Moved: Darrin Wilkinson Carried.

Seconded: Derek Alabaster

- Election of Officers:
 - o Patron
 - o President
 - Senior Vice President
 - Life Members
 - Vice Presidents
- Sir Paul Reeves
- Grant Coppersmith (2nd year of appointment)
- Graeme Carruthers
- Audrey Garrett elected
- Graham Hopping elected
- Darrin Wilkinson elected

- Club Officers:
 - Honorary Treasurer Paddy Marra
 - Honorary Secretary Emma Marriott
 - Club Captain Dean Macer
 - Club Administrator (new position) Duncan Murray
- Management Committee:
 - Derek Alabaster, Dilip Deva, Paul Hawkes, Iain McIsaac, Paul Taylor (Junior Club), Rod Setford (subject to acceptance).
- Delegates to Cricket Wellington Annual General Meeting (Wednesday 5 September):
 - Grant Coppersmith, Dean Macer, Paul Taylor, Derek Alabaster, Dilip Deva.
- Honorary Auditor

- Wayne Cook

General items of note: Audrey Garrett's nomination for life membership was in recognition of long and outstanding service to the Club, which commenced in 1970. Positions held included Secretary, results steward, management committee member, College liaison, and President. Graham Hopping's nomination for Vice President results from his successful term as Junior Club Chairman, and Darrin Wilkinson's nomination was in recognition of his long association with the Club as a player and administrator. The management committee fell short of the required minimum members; others will be co-opted at a later date.

Moved: Various (individual appointments) Seconded: Various Carried

Club Subscriptions for 2001/02 season

Paddy Marra announced a change in the way subs would be charged and collected. We are moving to a team sub concept, with a team consisting of 12 playing members. A pub will sponsor each side, and subs will be paid from pub charity money. <u>There will be no more discounting of subs</u>. This will lead to less difficulty in securing monies outstanding by Paddy and Dean. As a further consequence, no sub increases are proposed for individual players.

Russell Franklin expressed concern that main sponsors will desert if teams get their own sponsor. Paddy assured the Club this was not happening this season.

Richard Boag wanted to ensure that teams obtaining individual sponsorship informed the pubs that Saturday remained the Club night.

Derek advised that Greg Thomas of McKellar Properties has agreed to act as a principal sponsor again this season, and members of the Club needed to try and give Greg the opportunity to quote on more business. The support of Plimmers Ale Café was also acknowledged.

Moved: Grant Coppersmith Carried

Seconded: Darrin Wilkinson

• Notices of Motion

None forwarded.

General Business

Sandy Yule advised that Wellington College is likely to enter their 1st XI in the Second Grade this season. We are looking to play the annual fixture in January / early February, with Waitangi Day being an option.

Russell Franklin noted the lack of playing member involved in administration in the Club, an issue Derek will try to address when co-opting further committee members.

Alasdair McBeth advised that Cricket Wellington is addressing the player payments issue. He also noted that some financial assistance might be forthcoming this season from NZ Cricket.

At the upcoming Annual General Meeting I will complete my 2-year term as Club President and will hand the reigns over to Graeme Carruthers.

The 2001-02 year was one of consolidation for the Club, which has made a good deal of forward progress from that basis established last year:

- In December during the Saturday after match announcements we held an impromptu farewell function for our Chairman Derek Alabaster, who was leaving Wellington for a return to the mainland. Derek was a tremendous leader of the management committee since his return last year. His association with our club dates back over many years and I presented him with a Woolf photograph of Anderson Park to remind him of what was hopefully a memorable association with Wellington Collegians.
- Paddy Marra took over from Derek and has continued the good work. Paddy's business knowledge and genuine interest in player development are the sort of qualities, which the club needs and will benefit from.
- Our Secretary, Emma Marriott also left the region and was replaced by Peter Palmer. Again, as with Paddy, the club is very fortunate to have the services of a professional and well-organised committee member.
- The only major committee position remaining to be filled is that of Club Treasurer, which Paddy
 is currently performing in addition to his role as Chairman. This is clearly too much to ask of
 one person and the club is therefore seeking to elect a new Treasurer at the AGM. As a past
 Treasurer of the club, I would encourage those who want to learn about financial administration
 apply. The position offers an opportunity to see the club operations from its central governing
 body and (as I found) is great for your own work experience and CV. The level of time required
 for such benefits is minimal.
- At the upcoming AGM, the committee will be seeking to appoint a Club Administrator to perform the function of Club Captain as well as other administrative functions under the direction of the management committee.

On the playing side, the club remains in a strong position with a continued large number a senior men and one women's teams taking the field. Our Senior Men's team remains in the Hazlett Trophy competition for the upcoming season. However, if that team can continue it's excellent team approach to the game which we witnessed towards the end of last season, I am sure a return to the Pearce Cup competition will be it's reward.

Our junior club in my view is the best organised and administered in Wellington. The junior convenor, Paul Taylor made a valuable contribution to the committee and his presence at our meetings ensured that the junior players were always considered a part of our club.

Financially, the Club remains very strong. I have always believed that a solid financial base is important for the success of any not-for-profit activity as this allows its members to concentrate firstly on what we are trying to achieve – the playing of cricket. In our case we have such a financial base and I hope we never loose sight of its importance.

I end my term as your President after an involvement with Wellington Collegians Cricket Club spanning nearly 25 years to date. I will continue to follow and be interested in the success of this great club – which is the best in Wellington.

Paddy Marra

The Club is in good heart fielding 5 two day and 5 one day men's teams, a women's team and the Junior Club continues to be one of the strongest and well organised in Wellington with over 35 teams spread through all junior grades.

The 2001/2002 season was another of those frustrating season's that started with more play rained off before Christmas than was played.

It was also frustrating in that our Senior team had the opportunity to gain promotion back into Pearce Cup but lost the initiative in what turned out to be the key game of the season through inexperience in the situation that presented itself. As a result the team finished 3rd in the Grade, but still could have been challenging for Hazlett Trophy on the last day of the competition. Generally speaking the Senior team showed a lot of team spirit during the second half of the season and there is now a base of younger players who with a couple of experienced players have the making of a team capable of winning promotion into Pearce Cup.

The Senior 3 (Senior Reserve) team also played their way into a position to win the grade but again fell by losing their last two day game to Taita who went on to win the Grade.

It was great to see the improvement in the Women's team with two good wins in the second half of the season with Sally Morrison recording a century (122 not out) in the game against Mana. She will now have her name recorded on the honours board along with that of her father J F M (Mystery) Morrison. Another to come along leaps and bounds during the season was Amy Burgess with fine spells of bowling against most opposition leaving her with some outstanding figures bowling figures for the season. As a result of her improvement during the season Amy won the Norm Bibby Memorial Cup for the Most Promising Young Player for the season.

The 2A team improved their position in their Grade to 3rd, but unfortunately had to provide players to higher grades at crucial times. But it was good to see the emergence of two promising young players, Aaron McCash and Dan Gyles from this team and we look forward to better things from these two this coming season.

The 2B, which were a new team to the Club last season, finished 5th in their grade and the 3A team finished second. As a result all of the Club's 2 day teams finished in the top half of their respective grades, which is a commendable performance for the year.

The 2 4A grade teams finished 3rd and 4th and by the end of season it was the Living Legends who again brought home the silverware by winning the 4B Grade.

We must congratulate James Franklin on again being selected for the New Zealand Cricket team and the Wellington Firebirds and for also persuading Stephen Fleming to join the Club, although Stephen did not have the opportunity of playing for the Club due to his New Zealand and Wellington Firebird commitments.

On 17 February we had a great Collegians v Wanderers match to celebrate Larry Macer's 80th birthday. This was a wonderful day's cricket with over 500 runs being scored in the day and game hanging in the balance until the very last ball which Daniel Pringle hit out of Anderson Park to give a win to the Wanderers.

It is with sadness that I have to record the recent death of I A H (Jumbo) Symes, who was a Life Member and stalwart of the old Wellington Club.

The financial position is set out more fully in the Treasurer's report, but the Club ended the year with Surplus \$4,878 and overall in a strong financial position. It was very pleasing to see the improvement in the Junior Club's financial position after a difficult 2000/01 season.

During the past season we engaged Duncan Murray as our Cricket Manager and Junior Coach. While there were some teething problems with the concept in its first year of operation, the Committee believes that this is the way to progress the Club onto a more professional level for the development of the Club. We have therefore contracted Rolan de Jager as Club Manager and Coach for the coming season and Rolan will commence his duties on 1 September. It is our intention to obtain sponsorship to assist with the cost of this position as we did last year.

I would like record my thanks to both the Senior Club and Junior Club committee's and also to Dilip Deva for his untiring efforts for the Club, which was recognised by awarding him the Martin Luckie Trophy for the Best Club Member, a most popular choice when announced at the Prizegiving.

I would also like to thank Greg Thomas of McKellar Properties, Plimmers Ale Café, and the Brix Café for their sponsorships and also to thank the Lion Foundation and the New Zealand Community Trust on behalf of all the Pubs that supported our teams during the past season.

JUNIOR CRICKET REPORT

Paul Taylor

JUNIOR COMMITTEE

Convenor	Paul Taylor
Secretary/Administrator	Helen Milner
Treasurer	Ken Boam
Senior Club Chairman	Derek Alabaster
Gear Manager	Richard Tisdall
St Mark's School Coordinator Alison	Lavin
Girls Cricket Coordinator	Bob Davidson
Coaching Manager	Tony Dawbin
Hastings Camp Coordinator	Nigel Royfee
Senior Grade Coordinator	Sheryle Williams
	& Richard Braae
Intermediate Grade Coordinator	Nigel Royfee
Junior Grade Coordinator	Peter Newell
Apprentice Grade Coordinator	Angus McLeod
Midget/Kiwi Grade Coordinator	Alison Lavin
Nursery Grade Coordinator:	Charles Thompson

MEMBERSHIP / TEAM STATISTICS

Player numbers continued to decline this year although the decrease at the beginning of the season was only 4% compared with the 15% decline in 2000–01. Further decreases in the second half of the season resulted in a total loss of 44 players or 10% from the 2000–01 season. Reasons for these decreases are unclear.

	Teams	Players [†]	Teams	Players
*Grade/competition	01–02	01–02	00–01	00–01
Nursery	2	29 (3)	2	29
Kiwi	3	37 (3)	5	48
Kiwi/Midget	8	75 (12)	4	36
Apprentice	6	72 (29)	8	85
Junior	4	56 (2)	9	102
Intermediate	9	106 (5)	4	49
Senior/Colts/Premiers	4	51 (2)	8	95
Totals	36	426 (74)	40	444
Club Teams	5		6	
Wellington Western	2		3	
Zone				
Wellington Rep. Squad		8		10

*All grades above Apprentice are hard ball grades

[†]Numbers in parentheses are totals of girl players; girls are also included in the grade totals, as in other years

*Grade / Competition	Teams 1999–0	Teams 1998–9	Players 1999–0	Players 1998–9	Players 1997–8
Saturday					
Nursery	5	N/a	54	23	23
Kiwi 1	7	6	70	60	Soft
Kiwi 2	8	10	72	98	Ball
Junior B	9	6	108	77	237
Junior A	5	5	60	66	Hard
Intermediate	5	7	60	77	Ball
Snr./Colts/Prem.	8	6	96	71	234
Totals	47	40	520	472	493
Hastings					
Tournament	5	5	63	64	61
Club Teams	2	2	15	14	19
Wgtn W Zone					
(Collegians/Karori)					
Wellington	-	-	12	15	11
Reps					

*Grades above Junior A are hardball grades

SATURDAY COMPETITION GAMES

The emphasis for players in primary school cricket is on participation, having fun, and improving skills. The main focus for our 36 teams this season was on participation in the Wellington Club competition. Teams are selected by age and, according to the guidelines set down by Cricket Wellington, there is no streaming of players except for Colts (year 7) and Premier (year 8) teams. We strongly agree with the philosophy underlying this approach and look to providing an environment which nurtures a broad base of young players, from high achievers to those whose attitudes are more social. Teams therefore include players at various levels of skill development and are pitched to attain a balance between the numbers of wins and losses.

Grade	Wins 2001–02	Wins 2000–01
Kiwi	56%	45%
Midget	22%	59%
Apprentice	38%	41%
Junior	33%	54%
Intermediate	55%	66%
Senior	30%	22%
Colts/Premier	36%	43%

Grade	Wins 1999–00	Wins 1998–99
Kiwi 1	45%	32%
Kiwi 2	47%	37%
Junior B	57%	25%
Junior A	30%	38%
Intermediate	43%	53%
Senior	52%	40%
Colts/Premier	53%	33%

After various changes to grades in 2000–01 (Kiwi 1 and Kiwi 2 became Kiwi and Midget respectively, Junior B became Apprentice, and Junior A, the first hardball grade was renamed Junior), 2001–02 saw changes for Midget grade only: rules are now the same as for Apprentice grade except that teams consist of eight players only and games are of sixteen overs.

The Club was well represented in the Wellington Zone tournaments where Collegians and Karori combine to form Wellington Western Zone. We participated in three age group competitions playing four games each. These games also act as trials for Wellington Squad selections for each age group. It was pleasing that a number of our players achieved selection for their respective Wellington squad, but we need to consider the fact that these numbers are now down to about half those selected in 1998–99.

Wellington Rep.Squad	Players' Names
Boys Year 6	Conor Bartosh
	Dominic Forsythe
	Alex Roberts-Gray
	Andrew Newson
Boys Year 7	Harry Boam
	Elliot Borran
Boys Year 8	Reece Cargill
-	Samual Taylor

HASTINGS CAMP TOURNAMENT

As always, there was enthusiastic support by our players for the annual Hastings tournament. These players are selected by trial and they undoubtedly benefit from a high concentration of games against the best players in their age group from the lower North Island. Five Club Teams (one each for years 4/5, 6, 7, and 8, and the premier team) participated this year, along with two Western Zone teams (years 6 and 7) made up of Collegians and Karori Club players.

The tournament is held over several weeks in January. For each age group, six games are played over the four consecutive days dedicated to that group. Teams are entered into one of two grades, with zone teams competing in the higher grade, and club teams in the lower. Daily honour lists are posted for bowlers taking three wickets and batters making 30 runs. As in previous seasons, Collegians players featured frequently this season, showing that our players have the skills to be competitive at this higher level of participation. Many thanks to the parents involved in the coaching and management of these teams.

TEAM COACHING

This year saw Tony Dawbin continue in the role of Coaching Manager. This is a key position coordinating the various coaching activities of the club.

As always, our parent team coaches and managers have made a superb effort towards lifting the skills of our young players and the performance of their teams. This is consistently reflected in feedback from both players and parents. We are most indebted for their sustained commitment.

The Club is totally reliant on the enthusiasm of parents to provide coaching and administration at the team level. Many have had little experience in the formalities of cricket when they step into their role. To raise their understanding, the Club runs a briefing session and refresher courses for coaches at the beginning of the season. These provide ideas on how to run team coaching sessions. At the end of the season a review session is held for all coaches, focusing on how we can improve our parent coaches support programmes.

The Club also encourages all parent coaches to undertake the formal New Zealand Cricket certification programmes. Grants from the Hillary Commission have subsidised club costs in this area. In addition, a coaching conference run in Wellington by New Zealand Cricket this year provided further opportunity for coaches to improve their knowledge and skills. The conference was well received by our coaches who attended.

PROFESSIONAL COACHING

We continued with our emphasis on improving the quality of cricket enjoyed by junior players through a professional coaching programme. Duncan Murray continued as the Junior Club Coach this season, ably assisted Rolan de Jager. Rolan joined us after coming to New Zealand from South Africa where he had gained wide experience as a junior coach.

Two Coaching Clinics were held for junior players during the season. The contribution to these clinics by Senior Club players was once again very much appreciated

PLAYER RECOGNITION

Four season-end prize giving functions were held at the clubrooms during the week ending Friday 22 March 2002. Each evening began at 5.30 with a relaxed low-key BBQ, ticket sales for the raffle of a bat autographed by the Black Caps, and a catching competition. This was followed by the formal prize giving at about 6.15 pm. Each player was presented with a certificate as a member of their team, certificates were also presented to the bowler, batter, and fielder of the season for each team, and the player of the season for each team and players selected for Wellington representative squads were presented with trophies. Presentation of the Graham Hopping Trophy for Cricket Excellence was made to Reece Cargill by Kieran McMaster, who was the recipient in 2000–01.

The functions were well received and attended by players and parents. Paddy Marra, Chairman of the Collegians Club (Seniors), attended three of the prize giving evenings and presented an interesting talk on the history of the Collegians club.

OFF-SEASON COACHING

This winter we have changed the format of winter training. Squads of our best Players from Apprentice, Junior, Intermediate, and Senior grades, have been selected for special coaching over four Sundays close to the beginning of the season. Training will be taken at the Cricket Academy (Westpac Stadium) and at Mud Cycles gym in Karori. As in previous years we will use voluntary parent coaches, representative players from our senior club, and, for the first time, Academy coaches. Players in these squads are those most likely to represent the Club at the Hastings, Zone and Wellington Representative tournaments.

Many thanks to Mark Dinnison and Nick Whittington for their assistance with winter training last year, and to all the parents who assisted with the squads. Particular thanks to those who took the lead as coaches and managers and coordinated this activity. In some cases this was a large task; in all cases the result was excellent.

FINANCIAL

This year saw a welcome improvement to our financial position. We worked hard to overcome our previous deficit and finished the year with a surplus. We are particularly grateful to the Hillary Commission for their injection of \$10,000 at a time when we needed solid financial backing.

SPONSORSHIP

Last year we began a serious campaign to capture commercial sponsorship for the Club. Although we were unsuccessful in our first attempts, mainly because our target businesses were otherwise committed, we have made some definite progress. This year Don McLachlan has taken on the sponsorship coordinators role.

ADMINISTRATION

My thanks to the Junior Club committee for their efforts throughout the season. Helen Milner has retired from the committee after two years in the administrator position. Many thanks to Helen, who carried a huge work load while she was with us, and welcome to Jacqui Forsythe who has taken over from her. Many thanks also to Richard Braae, who has been a committee member for several years, has acted as grade coordinator, club-team coach, coach for one of our winter squads, and has taken a team to the Hastings tournament for the last two years. Thanks also to Angus McLeod who retired as a grade coordinator and coach this season, and to Richard Tisdall who has resigned after a number of years of service as Gear Manager.

Thankyou also to the Senior Club, now led by Paddy Marra, for their continuing work in maintaining a club-wide awareness of the investment needed in our junior players as a critical supply-line for future senior players. Effort from Senior Club members will ensure that both the senior and junior sections of the Club are united, and that overall Club spirit is increased and strengthened.

Paul Taylor Junior Convenor

SENIOR GRADE REPORT

The season started with a low scoring 1 day win over Onslow with Mark Tulloch taking 5 for 20 to start the season. This was followed by a low scoring 1 day loss to Johnsonville with Iain McIssac taking 4 for 18.

Then the rains came and we had 3 washed out 2 days games in a row, although in some cases the rain may have saved us. In the game against Upper Hutt James Franklin scored 67 and Mark Setford a solid 56.

We then had a tight 1 day loss against Eastern Suburbs with Mark Setford again contributing 68. This followed by an equally tight 1 day win against Stokes Valley on a wet and inadequate artificial at Ben Burn Park. This game saw the start of the fighting spirit within the team with the wickets shared around and all the team contributing with the bat right down through the order after Stokes Valley had set a reasonable total in the conditions. Andy Smith top scored in this game with 35.

The New Year again started with rain and a washout at Wainuiomata. This was followed by a good 2 day win over Eastern Suburbs with a quickfire 100* from Mark Tulloch and 55 from Richard Jonker.

Then came the 2 day game against Onslow, the game we lost but should not have. This was the game that saw Richard Jonker make 96 and Duncan Murray come back into form with a very quick 108 in the second innings to set Onslow a getable target, which they did. The target set was probably too low on a very flat Anderson Park and the points should not have been gifted to Onslow.

This made the team more determined in the next game, a 2 dayer against Johnsonville with Duncan Murray scoring 88 and a guest appearance from Robbie Kerr, filling in for Andi Ransom, who showed he still had class making 38. After initially having Johnsonville on the ropes, they fought back to 226 for 8 declared and then the rains came again on the 2nd day.

A tight 1 dayer against University followed this. Chasing a target of 202, and after losing 3 reasonably quick wickets, Richard Jonker and Mark Setford put their heads down and made 58 and 40 respectively. This was followed by a bit of collapse and James Hill then contributed 34 before being run out. It was then left to Mark Dinnison and Nick Palmer to see the team home by way singles and a couple of aggressive shots from Mark.

The last 2 day game was against Stokes Valley who were bowled for 137 in their first innings with Mark Dinnison taking 3 for 18. Collegians then set about making their largest score of the season (395) with Duncan Murray making 128, James Franklin 51, with contributions from James Hill (42), Nick Palmer (40) and Mark Dinnison (33). Stokes Valley then capitulated for 122 with Mark Tulloch taking 5 for 31.

The final game of season was on a wet track at Upper Hutt with Collegians batting first and after a shaking start getting through to 207 with Mark Tulloch making 35 and Preston Marra showing a bit of a return to form with 27. On a drying track Upper Hutt made the target with 8 wickets down and Mark Setford taking the last wicket of the season.

The team finished the season 3rd behind Onslow and University (having beaten them both in 1 day games, but not the more important 2 day games (loss and a draw)) with a record of:

Two day games:2 wins, 3 losses, 4 rained out drawsOne day games:3 wins, 3 losses, 1 rained out

Mark Tulloch joined the Club from Cornwall in Auckland and Richard Harkness also joined the Club prior to Christmas at an opportune time as Iain McIssac injured himself early in the season and we were without his experience for most of the season. However, Richard also injured himself in the Onslow game.

With injuries and the rain the team was a bit unsettled in the early part of the season. However, the Senior team showed a lot of team spirit during the second half of the season and there is now a base of younger players who with a couple of experienced players have the making of a team capable of winning promotion into Pearce Cup.

Duncan Murray was the only player to score two centuries in the Hazlett Trophy and with Mark Tulloch's 100 not out against Eastern Suburbs these were 3 of only 4 centuries scored in the Grade. Duncan finished the season with 473 runs at an average of 31.5. Mark Tulloch scored 366 runs at an average of 28.15 and took 31 wickets at 18.45 for the best all around performance for the team. And Richard Jonker contributed 341 runs at average of 34.1, as well as another 259 runs for the Senior Reserve team and the highest aggregate for the season at 580 runs. Richard has now returned to South Africa and we wish him well for the future.

SENIOR 3 REPORT

Rod Setford

The Wellington Collegian Senior Reserve team set out with a goal at the start of the year of returning to the top half of the Wellington Senior Reserve Competition. The team achieved this goal and almost won the grade if we had been able to win our last 2 day game against Taita who went on to win the grade.

The Senior Res Team had season record of:

Two Day Matches:	Win Outright	1
	Draw	4
	Lost	1
One-Day Matches:	Won	3
	Lost	3

Though we did not gain promotion to the top tier of the competition we came close in finishing 3rd in our grade by only a few points.

Weather once again played huge part in our results for the season, with certain outright wins in the two-day grades being rained off after the 1st day and one day games against the bottom teams rained out.

At the start of the season we had no worries with play numbers, but as with other seasons the player numbers dropped off during the season and we struggled to put the best team on the field week in week out. Fingers crossed this season we will have plenty of numbers for the entire season.

Game of note for us was the Outright win against J'ville, where we made them follow on and then knocked off the target for the loss of only a couple of wickets. The outstanding performance with the bat would have to go to Richard Jonker who scored 96 against Wellington Collage and 122* against the Indian's. Outstanding performances with the ball would go to Sri Rajasaker for his 5 for 33 against University, which just about made University follow on and Matt Johnston and Dave Taylor season wicket totals of 18 and 17 wickets respectively, the only two players to take double digit's in wickets

Once again the Senior Reserve team had a great team atmosphere and the team shared many laughs on the field. We must also thank our Sponsors JJ Murphy Bar for paying for team subs, hats and shirts.

There were many good things to come out from this season such as the emergence of Heath (Iron Gloves) Smith as a top-notch keeper, Dan (The 3 C's) Kershaw as a valid wicket taking option with the ball and the arrival of two Wellington College Boys into the team.

Hopefully next year we can retain the majority of the squad and live up to the potential we have in the team.

Highest Score	122*	Richard Jonkers
Highest Batting Aggregate	484	Rod Setford
Most Wickets	18	Matt Johnston
Best Batting Average	48.80	Rod Setford
Best Bowling Average	5.50	Tony Hill

I would just like to thank my team this season's effort on and off the field and I hope to see every one back this season.

2nd GRADE REPORT

Simon Law Collegians Second Grade Team Report 2001-02

It was a bit of a stop start year for the second grade side this year, with weather wrecking havoc earlier on in the season followed by injuries and call-ups to the reserves later in the year depleting our numbers. But despite this we found ourselves playing for second place on the last Saturday of the season. We lost, and promptly finished 3rd but this would be the highest placing we have achieved for some years, in spite of the fact that we only won 1 of our one-day games. (Needless to say our form in the 2-day games was much better). The Tawa side that won the grade did so primarily because of the rock hard Indian ball that they were allowed to use rather than any abundance of skill on their behalf.

Highlights for the year would be the 125* scored by Aaron McCash against the Indians and the 6 wickets in an innings taken by Dan Gyles against Onslow. Both Aaron and Dan were new players to the team this year and their contribution to the team as well as the progress that they made with their own games during the season were great to see. Dan finished as our leading wicket taker and was ably backed up by Jerry McGuire, Anthony Duncan and Jono Duffy who revelled in the higher number of overs that he got to bowl this year.

The batting side of things was again our downfall with not enough runs scored in the one-day games in particular leading to our poor results there. There were encouraging signs though with Bully, Shane Dog, Al Hill, Al Orpin and Aaron McCash giving us a very solid top order when they all played. Jerry also came into his own later in the season with some valuable knocks. Rizza was a source of inspiration in the field and has one of the most mysterious mystery balls in Wgtn Cricket.

Special mention must be made of "Iron Gloves" Kamo who helped us out a few times and even took 2 catches in the space of 15 overs of fielding (Never would have happened when he was keeping).

I'd also like to thank Al Hill for his tireless efforts to ensure that we had a team on the field every Saturday – between himself and Duncan Murray they did an extremely difficult job very well.

2B REPORT

Hamish Price

No report provided.

3A REPORT

WOMEN'S REPORT

Phillipa Bedford

It was a season of two halves for the women's team. Having been put into the controversial, and only, women's grade we made a slow start to the season leaving ourselves poised to finish in the bottom five. But that was all before the Christmas break. The team came back after Christmas with renewed vigour and looked like a team transformed. We were blessed with several memorable performances in the latter half of the season: Sally Morrison's magnificent century against Mana at Ngati Toa domain, Amy Burgess' fine spells of bowling against most opposition leaving her with outstanding figures of 3-7 and 3-11, and great bowling also from Maria Christopher and Sacha Butler our Wairarapa import. Many great memories can be drawn from this season, our triumphant win against Stokes Valley in the final game of the season on a positive note. We were not beaten by the team that won the grade, does that make us better than them, or should we take into consideration the fact that we never played them at all. We didn't finish in the bottom five and after all the trips to the beach and rained out games, it was a season all about looking good.

4A 'A' TEAM REPORT

Captain Glen Neal

Second equal placing represents good pass mark for a somewhat waterlogged season from the 37-member 4A side.

Ably managed by team Kaumatua (Cyril Mako) the official results showed the side played 16, won 7 and drew 4. However when we look at the on-filed results, a different picture of the seasons work emerges. We only completed 9 games for 5 wins and 4 losses.

The best team performance came early on in the season with an 8 wicket stuffing of Onslow A - the defending champs. The performance was easily the highlight when, due to early season communication issues Colls only fielded 8 players. Another highlight was the 38 run rolling of the Colls B side in the derby match. We await the return fixture, hopefully not scheduled on Cup day, this season.

At the bowling crease Mark Bretherton (10) claimed the most scalps with newcomer Brad Seaman claiming the best average of a shade over 20 among the regular bowlers.

The best individual knock came from Brendon Baker. Brendon started ugly - a very good sign - and in a display of great character was soon despatching the Onslow B attack to most parts of the postage stamp sized Cobham "Rectangle". A fine unbeaten 130 from the wily Baker was not enough, however to claim the batting "trophy" from Neal. Four knocks of 50 plus by the skipper, saw him pip Baker on both aggregate and averages.

Although second equal placing represents a fair effort - the weather remains the abiding memory. It is unfortunate that cancelled games are not rescheduled. The abundance of rain and the luck of the draw meant that some sides were played three times whilst for example we did not encounter the winners on the pitch at all. Surely cancelled fixtures could be rescheduled rather than cancelled? The luck of the draw factor begs this simple amendment if a fairer reflection of the seasons' work is to be drawn.

Colls 4AA uncovered some new talent and with a solid core of old and new players in place, we are well placed and eagerly anticipate an improved Indian summer. We appreciate the support of the club, and endeavour to reciprocate this support over the bar in 02/03. Roll on daylight savings!

4A 'B' TEAM REPORT (THE PUNTERS)

No report provided.

4B 'A' TEAM REPORT (THE LIVING LEGENDS)

Brian Steele

A season of intrigue temperately challenged.

Success in the judiciary pre Christmas paved the way for better displays on the park when it mattered at the business end of the season. This was post supporting the Wellington Food and Wine Festival organized by Legends own RL Boag an event that was not neglected in 2002 and should not be missed in March 2003.

Team highlights include;

- Winning our last seven games with contributions from all concerned to secure the pennant.
- Spanking (ex Collegians) Easts by 8 wickets to give them a brace of defeats from Collegians sides.
- Playing Collegians B's in two games. We look forward to the opportunity again soon.
- The batting and bowling trophies for Collegians One day sides (first time to achieve both for the team)
- The team and supporters of the team holding together so well despite the inclemency of the conditions for much of the season

Individual highlights include;

- Three centuries including one from our top all rounder Ray Dyer (bowling trophy)
- A cameo 125 from Stephen Haines before his (we hope temporary) departure to Nelson
- Our star fieldsman Jared Scarlett whose safe hands secured the Treasury
- The return of Billy Sadler, Hamish Watson from abroad plus RL Boag to the bowling crease
- Strong contributions from Kareen McCracken and Leonard Nikora at the bowling crease
- An increasing all round display by Ian Graham, to support Glen Phillips and Ray Dyer in that role
- The classy 50 from DW Boag before being called away to International Peace keeping duty
- The emergence of Greg Dyer and Andy Pratt at the bowling crease and Justin Dalley with the gloves. We look forward to more opportunity for runs from them next season
- The availability of Jim Riberio to score runs and Brent David to take wickets when required.
- Margaret for tirelessly and unselfishly increasing the on field availability of most of the team.

Great season lads. We look forward to the next.

4B 'B' TEAM REPORT

No report provided.

INDIVIDUAL HONOURS

CRICKET WELLINGTON Representative Honours 2001/02

James Franklin and Stephen Fleming

CLUB AWARDS 2001/02

Martin Luckie Trophy: Best Club Member Dilip Deva

Phoenix Cup: Best and Fairest Senior Player Duncan Murray

> R.C. Pope Mug: Best Senior Player Mark Tulloch

Don Churchill Cup: Best Senior Reserve Player Rod Setford

John Rose Memorial Cup: Hardest Working Player Garrick Sutherland

Committee Cup: Best Committee Person Paddy Marra

Norm Bibby Memorial Cup: Most Promising Young Player Amy Burgess

> James Trophy: Senior Cricketer of the Year Mark Tulloch

> > Grey Cup: Most Two-Day Runs Richard Jonkers (580)

Grey Cup: Most Two-Day Wickets Steve Ross (35)

Grey Cup: Most One-Day Runs Brian (Stretch) Steele (309)

Grey Cup: Most One-Day Wickets Ray (Digga) Dyer (21)

Ina Lamason Cup: Most Runs (Women) Sally Morrison (352)

Ina Lamason Cup: Most Wickets (Women) Maria Kapralos (14)

HONOURS BOARD PERFORMANCES 2001/02 SEASON

D. Murray M. Tulloch R. Jonker Sally Morrison A. McCash	Senior 1 Senior 1 Senior 1 and Senior 3 Senior Women	128 and 108 100* 122* and 580 runs 122* 125*
G. Dixon	2A 2B	128* and 109*
B. Seaman	3A	123

Grades Won

4B Grade

4B'A"

Other Notable Performances during 2001/02 (Not eligible for the Honours Board is hereby acknowledged)

A' 130* 'B' 119 'A' 125 'A' 114 'A' 108	0
C' 124	
	B' 119 A' 125 A' 114 A' 108 C' 124

TREASURER'S REPORT

&

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

TREASURER'S REPORT

The operating Surplus at \$4,878 was a much improved result compared to the loss of \$6,691 last year. Breaking out the result between the Senior Club and the Junior Club, the Senior Club made a surplus of \$216 compared to a loss of \$2,008 last year. While the Junior Club made a major turnaround with a surplus this year of \$4,332 compared to a loss of \$4,683 last year.

We again had a problem with collecting Subs from one of the lower grade 1 day teams who after a later entry then withdraw without notice late in the season. However, we did have some success early in the season in collecting some of the Subs owing by the same team from the previous year, Despite this the Club finished the year in a strong financial position.

During the season under review every Senior Club team with the exception of the Women's team, who ran a raffle to raise the bulk of their Subs and the team referred to above, managed to raise their Subs through a Pub Charity grant. However, the message that we are getting from the two administrative Trusts that administer the Pub Charity grants is that they will not be funding team subs in the future. Therefore it is intended that we make early applications for grants to meet the cost of our Club Administrator and the costs of cricket balls and ground fees, which are items that will benefit all Club members.

To help meet the cost of a Club Administrator we increased Subs slightly last year and ceased the previous scheme of discounting Subs for early payment. Subs are now levied on a team basis (\$2,400 for a 2 day team and \$2,000 for a 1 day team). Once we know how much we are able to obtain via the Club grants referred to above we will divide the balance of the budget for the year between the team entries and set team Subs to meet the balance of the Club costs. If we are able to achieve this objective then Team Subs will be set at a very moderate level compared to previous seasons and with other Clubs in the Wellington area. We believe that it is important to keep Subs to a minimum, but at the same time players should be prepared to meet a cost for playing sport at a Club.

The Sponsorship Fund again benefited from grants Plimmer Ale Café via the Lion Foundation, the Brix Café via the New Zealand Community Trust and our main sponsor, McKellar Property Services. These funds went towards team preparation and coaching expenses, and Brix Café grant specifically went towards repairs, team clothing and a new set of covers. We would like to thank these and all of our team sponsors for their help during the past season.

During the past season three scholarships were awarded from the Dave Grey Memorial Fund, but two were not unlifted. One has been uplifted since the end of the season and there was also a balance payment made from the previous season.

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Performance For the Year ended 31 May 2002

Income	2002 \$	2001 \$
Subscriptions – Senior Club Subscriptions – Junior Club	21,141 17,637	13,603 18,712
Other Junior Club Income	29,212	23,330
Sponsorship towards Administration Net Pavilion Trading Income Donations Interest Income Pavilion Donations Other Income Total Income and Revenue	10,000 1,127 345 1,157 840 - 81,459	2,000 2,005 285 933 1,022 - 61,890
Expenditure		
Club Administrator/Cricket Manager Cricket Balls Cricket Gear and Depreciation written-off Ground/Affiliation Fees Junior Cricket Expenses Pavilion Direct Expenses Write-off of old Pavilion Expenses Postage and Secretarial Other Expenses Total Expenses	13,350 4,252 1,944 9,283 42,517 3,363 - 571 1,301 76,581	5,411 1,477 8,226 46,725 3,458 1,081 972 1,230 68,581
Operating Surplus (Loss)	4,878	(6,691)
Add Accumulated Funds Brought Forward	3,647	10,338
Accumulated Funds Carried Forward	8,525	3,647

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Position As at 31 May 2002

Reserves		2002 \$	2001 \$
Accumulated Funds		8,525	3,647
Sponsorship Fund		35,481	31,679
A D Grey Memorial Fund		57,155	55,552
		101,161	90,878
Represented By:			
Fixed Assets (Note 2)		6,455	6,923
Term Deposits with National Bank of N2	Z (Note 3)	77,187	73,104
Current Assets			
Bank		14,991	5,167
GST Refund		2,411	378
Sundry Debtors		322 222	1,716 748
Subscriptions in Arrears Stock on Hand -	Bar Stocks	90	740
			68
	Cricket Balls	1,929	2,023
	Gear for Sale	1,167	934
		21,132	11,034
Less Current Liabilities			
Sundry Creditors		3,613	184
Net Assets Represented by Reserves		101,161	90,877

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Sponsorship Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2002

	\$	2002	2001 \$
Income			
Bull and Bear/Plimmer Ale Donation		4,500	7,000
Cricket Wellington (Best Bowler Prize)		-	250
Lion Foundation (Cambridge)		-	5,724
McKellar Property Services		5,000	5,000
NZ Community Trust (Brix Café/Cue Room)		3,474	5,781
	1	2,974	23,755
Expenditure			
Centenary Celebrations		-	(156)
Indoor Wicket Hire		1,429	818
New Covers (Sponored by Brix Café)		1,300	-
Professional Coaching/Player Payments		2,645	10,195
Repairs to Anderson Park Nets and Clubrooms		287	4,250
Team Expenses	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3,011	3,674
Wellington College 1 st IX Caps		500	-
		9,172	18,781
Net Income for the Year		3,802	4,974
Add Opening Balance	3	1,679	26,705
Balance at 31 May	3	5,481	31,679

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. A D Grey Memorial Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2002

	2002 \$	2001 \$
Income		
Opening Balance at 1 June Interest Accrued	55,553 3,102	
Scholarships Granted and Paid	1,500	4,000
Balance at 31 May	57,155	55,553

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year ended 31 May 2002

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

A. General Accounting Policies

The Club was registered as Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) with the Registrar of Incorporated Societies in December 1980. Financial Statements which have been adopted by members at an Annual General Meeting and subject to audit are required to be Placed on public file with the Registrar on an annual basis.

(i) These financial statements have been prepared with application of generally accepted accounting practices as defined in the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

(ii) The principles of measurement and reporting of financial performance and position under the historical cost method have been applied.

(iii) Expenditure charged to the Sponsorship Fund comprises items that are not part of normal Club operations and hence not covered by subscription income.

B. Specific Accounting Policies

The following specific accounting policies which significantly affect the measurement of financial performance and position have been applied:

(i) Depreciation

The principal rates of depreciation used were as follows:

Equity in Pavilion Lease	Nil
Gear (Sundry Gear Expensed)	50% 1st Year
	25% 2nd/3rd Years
Pavilion Equipment	10% DV
Pavilion Alterations	10% DV

(ii) Sundry Debtors

Debtors and subscriptions in arrears are stated at estimated realisable value.

(iii) Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

C. Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the current year.

2. Fixed Assets

	Cost	Accum Depr'n ¢	2002 NBV ¢	2001 NBV ¢
Equity in Pavilion	ъ 4.425	φ	پ 4.425	φ 4,425
Pavilion Alterations	17,765		663	736
Pavilion Equipment	1,012	,	201	224
Gear	7,695	6,580	1,115	1,487
Trophies	51	-	51	51
	30,948	24,493	6,455	6,923

3. Term Deposits

Surplus funds and the funds representing the A D Grey Memorial Fund have been placed on deposit with The National Bank of New Zealand. At balance date there were two deposits earning 5.15% and 4.70%, one rolling over at 3 month intervals and the other at 4 month intervals.

Grade Points and Placings

&

Team Statistics

Team	Points	Position in Grade	Champion
Senior Men (Hazlett Trophy)	86.99	3rd	Onslow
Senior 3	66.09	3rd	Taita
Women	30.00	6th	Eastern Suburbs
2A	73.61	3 rd	Tawa
2B	50.39	5th	Sri Lankan Sport
3A	98.54	2nd	Tawa A
4A 'A'	54	3rd	University
4A 'B'	51	4th	University
4B 'A'	72	1st	Wgtn Collegians
4B 'B'	39	6 th	Wgtn Collegians
4B 'C'	24	8 th	Wgtn Collegians

Wellington Collegians Senior Averages 2001/02

J	Not	Outs			Highest		Cat	ches/
Batting	Innings		<u>Runs</u>	<u>Average</u>	Score	<u>50's</u>	<u>100's</u> Stu	mpings
Richard Jonkers	11	1	341	34.10	96	3		5
Duncan Murray	17	2	473	31.53	128		2	9
James Franklin	8	1	201	28.71	67	2		7
Mark Tulloch	15	2	366	28.15	100*		1	6
Mark Setford	13	2	265	24.09	68	2		3
James Hill	8	2	131	21.83	42			3
Nick Palmer	5	1	84	21.00	40			
Andy Smith	13	4	183	20.33	35			3
Preston Marra	7	2	86	17.20	36*			5
S Fernando	9	1	120	15.00	32			2
Mark Dinnison	7	1	85	14.17	33			1
Andrew Ranson	3	0	40	13.33	26			7
Rolan de Jager	5	0	52	10.40	21			0
Garrick Sutherland	5	3	18	9.00	9*			2
lain McIsaac	5	3	16	8.00	10*			2
Richard Harkness	4	1	8	2.67	4			0
Also batted:	Dean Macer 1	and 18,	Jarrod Lov	vell 3 and 5, G	Freg Haines	1, Robbie k	Kerr 38 and Ni	ck Whittingto

Bowling	<u>Overs</u>	<u>Maidens</u>	<u>Runs</u>	<u>Wickets</u>	<u>Average</u>	<u>Best</u> Bowling	<u>5 Wkts</u>	<u>Runs per</u> <u>Over</u>	<u>Ove</u> <u>W</u>
Mark Dinnison	91.0	16	260.0	16	16.25	3-18		2.86	
lain McIsaac	69.5	17	175.0	10	17.50	4-12		2.52	
Mark Tulloch	179.0	38	572.0	31	18.45	5-20	2	3.20	
Garrick Sutherland	39.1	3	192.0	10	19.20	3-21		4.91	
Nick Palmer	110.2	14	410.0	16	25.63	2-27		3.72	
James Franklin	21.0	3	79.0	3	26.33	2-24		3.76	
Dean Macer	27.0	6	58.0	4	28.33	3-10		2.15	
Richard Harkness	76.0	15	285.0	10	28.50	4-57		3.75	
James Hill	66.0	4	283.0	9	31.44	2-10		4.29	
Mark Setford	32.1	6	131.0	8	92.50	2-21		4.13	
Also bowled	Mat Johns	ston 9.1-1-29	-3, Duncar	n Murray 4-0-	-19-1, Prest	on Marra 1	2-0-82-1		

Wellington Collegians Senior Reserve (Senior 3) Averages 2001/02

					<u>Highest</u>			Catches/
Batting	<u>Innings</u>	Not Outs	<u>Runs</u>	<u>Average</u>	<u>Score</u>	<u>50's</u>	<u>100's</u>	Stumpings
Richard Jonkers	3	2	239	239.00	122*	1	1	2
Sri Rajesekar	5	4	73	73.00	26*			1
Tony Hill	9	3	295	49.17	72	1		4
Rod Setford	14	3	485	44.09	97	4		6
S Fernando	2	0	72	36.00	56	1		0
Byron Patel	7	2	157	31.40	53	1		4
Alaistair Hill	7	2	157	31.40	53	1		4
S Sharland	3	1	53	26.50	47			0
Justin Lampard	4	0	95	23.75	68	1		1
Daniel Kershaw	5	2	61	20.33	29			1
Jarrod Lovell	5	2	58	19.33	22			3
Garrick Sutherland	1	0	19	19.00	19			2
Rolan de Jager	10	1	158	17.56	51			2
Mat Johnston	4	3	17	17.00	9			2
Heath Smith	12	2	108	10.80	45			6
David Taylor	3	0	31	10.33	16			3
Greg Haines	2	0	14	7.00	8			2

Also batted

Nick Palmer 14, Mal McLean 14 and 8, Steve Haines 14 and 4, Preston Marra 5, Simon Law 11, B Maquire 7, G Dixon 6*, A Duncan 1, Dan Gyles 0 and Nick Whittington 0.

Senior 3 cont'd	0	Maidana	Dung	Wieleste	A	<u>Best</u>		Runs per	<u>Overs</u>
Bowling	<u>Overs</u>	<u>Maidens</u>	<u>Runs</u>	Wickets	<u>Average</u>	<u>Bowling</u>	<u>5 Wkts</u>	<u>Over</u>	Wkt
Heath Smith	7.0	0	29	4	7.25	4-17		4.1	
Preston Marra	25.0	4	74	8	9.25	5-21	1	3.0	
Daniel Kershaw	28.5	7	80	7	11.43	2-0		2.8	
Sri Rajesekar	45.2	8	149	12	12.42	5-32	1	3.3	
Rolan de Jager	34.2	6	111	8	13.88	3-15		3.2	
David Taylor	74.0	7	266	17	15.65	5-33		3.6	
Mat Johnston	94.0	14	299	19	15.74	4-29		3.2	
Mal McLean	19.1	0	74	4	18.50	3-23		3.9	
Nick Palmer	34.0	3	118	6	19.67	2-21		3.5	
Dan Gyles	16.0	2	67	3	22.33	2-44		4.2	
Dean Macer	36.1	13	91	4	22.75	3-23		2.5	
Rod Setford	83.2	22	252	6	42.00	1-8		3.0	1
Mark Dinnison	25.0	5	79	1	79.00	1-53		3.2	2
Garrick Sutherland	34.0	9	112	0	#DIV/0!	0-13		3.3	#DIV/(
Also bowled	Richard Ha	rkness 8-1-3	1-2, Simor	Law 8-1-39	-2, B Magu	ire 4-0-14-'	I, S Fernai	ndo 4-0-14-0,	

A Duncan 4-0-17-0, G Dixon 4-0-26-0, Tony Hill 2-0-11-2, Byron Patel 1-0-4-0

4 A 'A'	Μ	I	N.O	Runs	Ave	HS	50's	100's	0	М	W	R	Ave	R/O
Neal	8	8	2	306	51.0	82	2	0	9.1	0	3	75	25	8.2
Baker	8	8	2	288	48.0	130	0	1	1	0	1	6	6	6.0
French	4	4	0	164	41.0	51	1	0	26	1	6	160	26.7	6.2
Seaman	4	4	0	93	23.3	40	0	0	26.1	0	8	163	20.4	6.2
Miller	6	3	1	75	37.5	32	0	0	47	4	7	205	29.3	4.4
Aitofi	5	5	1	70	17.5	40	0	0	25.1	1	5	144	28.8	5.7
Mako	7	5	3	61	30.5	20	0	0	45	2	7	210	30	4.7
Wood	4	4	0	58	14.5	41	0	0						
Flanagan	2	2	0	54	27.0	42	0	0						
Bradford	2	2	0	40	20.0	28	0	0						
Bretherton	7	5	1	40	10.0	16	0	0	44	0	10	271	27.1	6.2
Brown	4	3	1	39	19.5	27	0	0	31	2	4	114	28.5	3.7
Seabrook	3	3	0	36	12.0	21	0	0	5	0	1	38	38	7.6
Stokes	2	2	0	36	18.0	28	0	0	3	0	0	21	-	7.0
Sentch	1	1	0	33	33.0	33	0	0	5	0	1	25	25	5.0
Hurrell	2	2	0	28	14.0	25	0	0						
Rivers	4	3	0	21	7.0	9	0	0	12	1	1	51	51	4.3
Gordon	4	3	0	11	3.7	8	0	0						
Marriot-Lloyd	3	3	0	10	3.3	10	0	0						
Ward	1	1	0	10	10.0	10	0	0	1	0	1	9	9	9.0
James	1	1	1	9	-	9	0	0	4	0	1	22	22	5.5
Te Maro	2	1	0	6	6.0	6	0	0	16	0	3	53	17.7	3.3
Mclver	7	3	1	4	2.0	3	0	0	38	1	5	179	35.8	4.7
Wilson	3	2	1	4	4.0	3	0	0	7	1	1	71	71	10.1
Chris	1	1	0	4	4.0	4	0	0						
Opes	1	1	0	2	2.0	2	0	0						
Goulter	2	1	1	1	-	1	0	0						
Timworth	1	1	0	1	1.0	1	0	0						
Vaughan-	3	1	0	0	0.0	0	0	0	14	0	3	118	39.3	8.4
Sanders														
Cloutman	1	0	0	0	-	0	0	0	4	0	0	34	-	8.5
Beard	1	0	0	0	-	0	0	0	1	0	1	16	16	16.0
Тоу	1	1	0	0	0.0	0	0	0						

4 B'A' (Living	М	Ι	N.O	Runs	Ave	HS	50's	100's	0	Μ	W	R	Ave	R/O
Legends)														
S Haines	2	2		153	76.5	125	0	1	7	0	2	36	18.0	5.1
G Phillips	3	3	1	101	50.5	51	1		13	2	2	65	32.5	5.0
I Graham	6	6	4	91	45.5	34			34.4	1	10	251	25.1	7.3
R Dyer	8	8	2	268	44.7	108	0	1	54.4	7	21	214	10.2	3.9
Dolmio	3	3	1	117	39.0	91	1							
B Steele	9	9	1	309	38.6	114	0	1						
B Sadler	3	3		115	38.3	90	1	0	16	1	2	54	27.0	3.4
Nathan	1	1	0	28	28.0	28	0	0						
J Ribiero	3	3		67	22.3	36								
B David	2	1		22	22.0	22	0	0	17	0	4	86	21.5	5.1
K McCracken	4	4	3	19	19.0	19	0	0	22.3	0	3	131	43.7	5.9
R Boag	2	2		35	17.5	34	0	0	5	0	1	20	20.0	4.0
D Boag	7	7	0	121	17.3	50	1	0						
H Watson	2	2	1	15	15.0	15	0	0	15	1	6	68	11.3	4.5
Trap	1	1		15	15.0	15	0	0						
A Pratt	1	1	1	13	13.0	13	0	0	10	0	2	63	31.5	6.3
J Walker	1	1	0	11	11.0	11	0	0						
Rees	1	1		10	10.0	10	0	0						
L Nikora	4	4	0	35	8.8	31	0	0	33	0	7	176	25.1	5.3
G Dyer	4	4	1	21	7.0	20	0	0	18	0	8	72	9.0	4.0
J Scarlett	2	2	0	11	5.5	91	0	0						
T Leamy	1	1	0	4	4.0	4	0	0	8	1	2	53	26.5	6.6
B Fiebig	2	2	0	5	2.5	5	0	0	16	1	3	65	21.7	4.1
Whale	1	1	0	1	1.0	1	0	0						

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

Gratefully acknowledge the support, sponsorship

and donations from the following:

McKellar Property Services

(Greg Thomas)

DB Breweries

(Player of the Day awards)

Brix Café Plimmers Ale Café

Lion Foundation and the NZ Community Trust On behalf of all the Pubs that supported our players and teams

> Trevor Barber Alasdair McBeth Chris Monigatti A. H.(Jumbo) Symes Darrin Wilkinson